
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The August 2015 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will 
be held on Thursday, August 20, 2015 at 6:00 pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 E. 
Church St. Elmira, NY 14901.  The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to 
attend, please inform Mr. Roberts (271-9625), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-
8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2015-43)   
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 Consent Items: Approval of the CCLD Audit for FY 2014. 
 Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the audit as presented. 
 b)  Financial report (document #2015-44) 
 c)  Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document #2014-45) 
6.  Correspondence  
7.  President’s report. 
 Consent Items: Recognition of Mary Welles Mooers Smith.  
 Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees recognizing her for her dedication and 
 achievements in support of the District.  
8.  Director’s Report.  
 Consent Items: Approval of Fall/Winter 2015-2016 hours.  
 Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the Fall/Winter 2015-2-16 hours. 
9.  Committee reports:   

a)  Executive Committee (Roberts)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-46) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-47) 

 Consent Items: Approval of the CCLD Budget for FY 2014. 
 Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the budget as presented. 

c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Muldoon) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (document #2014-48) 
d) Personnel Committee (Kappanadze)  
Consent Items: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 

10. Call for Executive Session 
11.  Old business  
 a) Issues regarding safety and public service due to the proximity of the Promenade 
 b) Discussion of continued 24/7 wireless access 
12.  New business 

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/


13.  Period for public expression  
14.  Adjournment  



(Minutes of the JULY 2015 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of Trustees.  
Document #2015-43) 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by President Richard Roberts. Present were Pat Silvernail, Ann 
Hayes, Georgia Reynolds, Jack Schamel, Marge Kappanadze, Juan Jones, Phyllis Rogan, Rachel Dworkin, 
Jim Hare, Tim Blandford and Jessica Roberts. Excused:  Bonnie Chollet and Michael Muldoon. Also present 
were Ron Shaw, the Library District’s Director and Joan Santulli, the Library District’s Administrative 
Assistant and Rich Davis of EFP Rotenberg, the auditing firm for CCLD. 
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the June 2015 meeting (Document #2015-37) were presented for board review. The 
minutes were approved as corrected in writing by unanimous consent.   
 
The meeting was turned over to Rich Davis who reviewed the Independent Auditor’s Report and the complete 
audit of the Library District’s Financial Statements for fiscal year 2014.  He stated that there were no “red 
flags” when doing the audit. He spoke about internal controls and the segregation of duties which are limited 
for CCLD because of staffing. Fixed assets are down due to depreciation.  Board members will take time to 
review the audit and the approval will be on the agenda for the August board meeting. 
 
Financial  Report. The May 31, 2015 Financial Report (Document #2015-38) was presented for board 
review. Mr. Schamel stated that the report shows CCLD right on target.  By unanimous consent the June 30, 
2015 Financial Report was approved as distributed and will be filed for audit.   
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2015-39). Mr. Schamel pointed out that this bill list includes the second 
quarter payment to Chemung County for Debt Service and to the Southern Tier Library System for Cost 
Share. By unanimous consent, the board authorizes the payment of the unpaid bills dated 7/8/15 – General 
Fund $67,591.36 as distributed.   

 
Correspondence.   Mr. Shaw reported that for the second year in a row, CCLD-Steele Library has won a 
Breastfeeding Friendly Award. He also reported receiving a phone call from a regular patron who applauded 
CCLD for holding the “Heroes” program because she had two family members who were injured in WWII 
and this was a great program for the Vets. Mr. Shaw has also handled several emails and phone calls regarding 
problems with people hanging out under the Promenade who are disturbing library patrons.   

 
President’s Report.  Regarding policy #640 - “Alcohol Use in Library Facilities” policy, board members 
were concerned about clean-up following an event.  It should be made part of the procedure and be included 
on the application form.  
CONSENT ITEMS: 

• Approval of the CCLD Board of Trustees Policy 640 – Alcohol in Library Facilities. Mr. Hare moved, 
seconded by Ms. Roberts to accept the policy as submitted in writing to the board. VOTE: Ten (10) 
approved, two (2) opposed. Policy approved as written.  

 
Mr. Roberts stated that the Southern Tier Library System and the Library Trustees Association had a nice 
presentation in Hammondsport on the basics of Trustee responsibilities and library law. 
 
Director’s Report.   Mr. Shaw discussed the following: 
CCLD Issues.  
   Zinio. In the first 2 weeks there has been 550 checkouts system wide for this online magazine database. 
   Transparent Languages Online.  In the first 2 weeks there have been 20 unique users and 44 sessions.  The  
   Popular languages were Spanish and African. 
   IndieFlix. Stats will not be available until next month.  
   Lynda.com. This online training program just went live this week.  
    



Scheduling software.   Live schedules will begin next week and individual staff members will be trained to        
submit their own time off requests in the system. 
Collection bins Catholic Charities. Clothing for back-to-school will be collected; there are no issues with this. 
Promenade.  Power has been cut to the electrical plugs under the Promenade and covers have been placed at 
all exterior plugs at the Steele Library. The City Police have stepped up their patrols. Due to the many 
complaints by patrons and problems after hours, Ms. Reynolds moved, seconded by Mr. Schamel to turn off 
the Wireless access anytime CCLD libraries are closed. This decision will be reviewed each month to 
determine whether or not to continue cutting this access. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  Mr. Shaw stated 
that he has created several new forms for staff (1) a form for patron complaints; (2) a banned patron form; and 
(3) an internal incident report form. Banning of a patron from library access must be progressive and should 
have a paper trail.  
 
Programs. CCLD is in a joint venture with the Chemung County Youth Bureau where the basics of Lego 
Robotics building and programming can be learned in a 4 week workshop series. Regarding the Summer 
Concert Series, the weather has had an impact on attendance.  
 
The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last month were submitted 
in writing to the board.  

Executive Committee.   
 
The meeting was turned over to Maggie Young, Librarian in charge of Genealogy and Local History.  She 
gave a short presentation to the board of the special services her department offers to the public.  She stated 
that Sherry Nichols is a valuable asset to her department. She stated that her mission is that everyone would 
succeed in finding their local family. The library is a great equalizer. She currently has 6 regular volunteers.  
The board thanked Ms. Young for her detailed presentation.  
 
Mr. Jones left the meeting at this time. 
 
The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to the board (Document #2015-40). President 
Roberts stated that the bill that was approved by the State Legislature that will allow the Executive Committee 
to approve payment of invoices has not yet been signed by the Governor.   
 
The Committee approved a special exception of CCLD’s Meeting Room Policy to allow the Public Library 
Foundation of Chemung County (Horseheads) to utilize the Horseheads Library after hours on October 12, 
2015 for the purposes of the dedication of the Earle R. Catlin Meeting Room and the reception that will 
follow.  Mr. Roberts has sent an official notification to their board president.   
 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting was presented in 
writing to the board (Document #2015-41). Board members received a copy of the proposed 2016 Library 
District budget. The budget includes a 1.79% increase in the tax receipts which falls below the 2% tax cap put 
in place by the Governor.  Board members should review the budget in detail and send any questions to 
Director Ron Shaw.  The approval of the budget will be placed as a Consent Item on the August meeting 
agenda.   
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee meeting was presented 
in writing to the board (Document #2015-42). Mr. Hare reported the following: 
   Steele Library - Elevator Project will begin next month.  The Southern Tier Library System has approved 
$101,763 in State funding for the Chiller Project which has also been awarded $150,000 through the NYS 
Economic Development Assistance Program (NYS EDAP) which will be administered by the Dormitory 
Authority of New York State (DASNY). The sidewalk slabs that have shifted were repaired by the County 



Buildings & Grounds this month.  CCLD is still awaiting confirmation from the State regarding the approval 
of the funding for the Bathroom Renovation Project.  
   Horseheads Library – The tree at the library has been removed by Renko Tree Service.  
Due to the cost of installing security systems and fire alarms at the branch libraries, the Committee has 
recommended not pursuing this as it is not mandatory. 
   West Elmira Library – Regarding the neighbor’s request that a tree in front of the library be removed, the 
Committee is not interested in getting a quote and moving forward with this matter.  The problems with the 
restroom are being worked on by the County – it may require installation of a larger toilet.  
   Big Flats Library – Following their septic problem repairs, there is still an open area in the back room that 
will require the County to cover up.  
 
Personnel Committee.  Ms. Kappanadze stated that the HR Consultant get underway soon with scheduling 
interviews with CCLD staff members.  
 
CONSENT ITEM – Approval of Personnel Actions. (Appendix C). Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. 
Dworkin to approve the Personnel Actions as submitted to the board.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Mr. Shaw reported that interviews will be scheduled to replace Jason Mendoza who is leaving at the end of 
July. He has been working exclusively in the Maker Space Tinker Lab. A MakerSpace Clerk will be hired. Mr. 
Shaw also requested approval to hire a part-time Library Page for the Horseheads Library.  There is a vacant 
position at that location.  Ms. Reynolds moved, seconded by Mr. Blandford to approve the filling of this 
position. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
Old Business.  Ms. Dworkin reported that the Election notice has been approved and will be sent to the Star 
Gazette.  The notice will also be posted on CCLD’s website along with a copy of the petition needed for 
inclusion on the election ballot.   
 
Public Expression.   Cindy Emmer, STLS board member stated that there was a great turnout of board 
members from CCLD at the recent conference in Hammondsport.  She also state that the deadline for 
nominations of all STLS awards has been extended to July 31, 2015.  
 
New Business.  Ms. Kappanadze mentioned that there is software available that can be attached to our website 
to make it easy for people to donate to the Library District.  This is an avenue that could be investigated.  
 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:30pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Thursday, 
August 20th, 2015 at 6:00pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 East Church Street, Elmira, New 
York. 



















Document #2015-46 
 
Report of the August 5th, 2015 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District:   
 
Attending the meeting from the Executive Committee were Richard Roberts, Rachel Dworkin, 
Marge Kappanadze, Georgia Reynolds, Jack Schamel; and Joan Santulli, CCLD management.  Other 
board members in attendance were Mike Muldoon and Phyllis Rogan. The meeting opened at 
6:04pm.   
 
President’s Report.  Mr. Roberts stated that former board member Denny Smith’s mother has passed 
away.  Mary Welles Mooers Smith was an avid library user and member of the Friends of CCLD.  A 
sympathy card from the board will be sent to the family.  An item will be placed on the agenda for 
the August meeting recognizing her for her dedication and achievements.  
 
Mr. Shaw stated that he has heard from Assemblyman Friend’s office that the process in approval of 
legislative changes is slow.  He will notify CCLD when our change in legislation has been forwarded 
to the Governor’s office.  
 
CCLD has submitted nominations for two awards to STLS.  One for the "Outstanding Library 
Advocate Award" recognizing the contributions of  Ann Thurber - a long time CCLD volunteer and 
for the " Outstanding Promotional Video Award.".   
 
The City of Elmira is discussing the possibility of piping Opera music under the Promenade to assist 
in regulating those who are utilizing the tables and chairs.   
 
Ms. Santulli was unable to present the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 8/5/15 for the General Fund because 
there was not a quorum of board members present.  She stated that this delay in payment of some 
invoices will result in loss of discounts and in late fee and interest charges to some other invoices.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:15pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District will be held on Wednesday, September 2nd, 2015 at 6pm in the Petrie 
Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   
 
 
 



Document #2015-47 
 
Report of the August 12th, 2015 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Rick Roberts, Jack Schamel and Marge 
Kappanadze, Georgia and Community Member Robin Fitzgerald.  Also attending was Joan 
Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration.  The meeting opened at 8:00am.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the July 31st, 2015 Financial Report to the Committee. The Report will be 
forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the 8/5/15 Unpaid Bills Detail for the General Fund bills totaling 
$30,626.63 and the 8/12/15 Unpaid Bills Detail for the Grant Fund - $2,372.97 and the General 
Fund – 70,254.47. The list includes the first payment to Elmira Structures for the Elevator 
project at Steele and the second quarter Utilities payment to Chemung County.   The Unpaid 
Bills Detail will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
There have been no questions submitted by board members for the proposed 2016 Library 
District budget.  A consent item will be included on the August meeting agenda for board 
approval of the budget.    
 
Mr. Roberts reported receipt of a letter from the Public Library Foundation of Chemung County 
(Horseheads) which states they expect to contribute approximately $102,000 to CCLD in 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:20am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, September 9th, 2015 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the 
Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2015-48 
 
Report of the August 5th, 2015 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30pm. Present were Mr. Muldoon, Mr. Hare, Ms. Hayes and Mr. Roberts. Also 
attending were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Management.   
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 

o Elevator Project at Steele.  The project will begin August 17th. Signs have already been posted in the 
building and the press release has been sent out.  It is expected that the elevator will be completely 
out of service for about 2 ½ weeks. CCLD will do what we can to accommodate those patrons who 
are handicapped and cannot make it to the second floor.  Mr. Muldoon reviewed a request from Hunt 
Engineers for payment of an invoice in the amount of $2,227.73 and a request to pay Elmira 
Structures the first payment on the project in the amount of $28,357.50.  The Committee 
recommended payment of these invoices.   

o Bathroom Project at the Steele Library – a 2015 project application.  Still waiting the funding that 
has been approved.  

o Chiller Project at the Steele Library – a 2016 project application.  STLS has approved $101,000 for 
the project in State funding and DASNY has notified us that they will fund the project with 
$150,000.  

o Taitem Energy Audit. It has been submitted. CCLD is waiting to hear from NYSERDA. 
o Other Steele Library issues. The sidewalk repair has been completed by the County and the 

insurance company has been notified.  There was a clogged sewer line that overflowed into the 
downstairs Mechanical Room.  The County has been here and the issue has been resolved.  

o West Elmira Library.  The request from a neighbor to remove the tree in the front of the 
library was discussed.  Mr. Shaw will call the neighbor.  If he gets a quote, the issue can be 
brought to the board of trustees.  At this time the Committee will take no further action in 
this matter.  

o Dark Fiber. STLS is on target for completion by the end of the year. 
o Horseheads Library. The tree has been removed and the final payment of $2,850 will be sent 

to the Executive Committee for approval.  
o Big Flats Library.  A tree need trimming. Mr. Shaw is requesting that the lawn service 

company take care of trimming it.  
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:49pm.  
 
 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, September 
2nd, 2015 at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 


	Agenda 2015-8
	Document 2015-43
	Document 2015-44
	Document 2015-45
	Document 2015-46
	Document 2015-47
	Document 2015-48

